HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 25, 2005
1:49 p.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:49:21 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft

ALSO PRESENT

Adam Berg, Staff, Representative Carl Mses; Representative
Bob Lynn; Representative Mx Guenberg; Philip Mtchell,
Section Chief, Bureau of Vital Statistics, Departnment of
Heal t h and Soci al Servi ces; Jane Perrson, Staff,
Representative Jay Ranras; Representative Jay Ranras; Mark
Vi nsel, Executive Director, United Fishernen of Al aska

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jerry Beale, Veterans’ Service Oficer, Division Service
Manager, Mlitary and Veterans Affairs; Paul Shadura,
Presi dent, Kenai Peninsula Fisherman’s Associ ation

SUMVARY

HB 26 "An Act relating to short-term comrercial fishing
cr ewrenber | i censes; and providing for an
effective date."

CSHB 26 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a
"do pass" recomendation and with fiscal inpact
note #1 by the Departnent of Fish and Ganme, and
with an indeterm nate fiscal inpact note #2 by the
Depart ment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent.

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



HB 167 "An Act relating to providing a death certificate
for a deceased veteran w thout cost."

CSHB 167 (STA) was REPORTED out of Conmttee with
a "do pass" recomendation and with a zero fiscal
i npact note #1 by the Departnent of Mlitary and
Veterans Affairs, and with a new zero fiscal
i npact note by the House Finance Commttee for the
Departnent of Health and Social Services.

HB 213 "An Act relating to al cohol server education.”
HB 213 was REPORTED out of Conmttee wth a "do
pass" recomendation and with a zero fiscal inpact
note by the Departnent of Public Safety.

1: 51: 32 PM

HOUSE BILL NO. 26

"An Act relating to short-term commercial fishing

crewrenber licenses; and providing for an effective
date."
ADAM BERG, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE MOSES, related that HB 26
allows for a seven-day Ilicense for comercial fishing
crewrenbers for $30. The bill provides an option to charge
tourists to work on a commercial boat. It would also help

fishers who need short-term help, by allowng visitors,
relatives, and friends a nore affordable way to help. He
pointed out that wunder the House Resources Conmittee’s
version of the bill, a clause was added that would prohibit
short-termlicense holders from bei ng conpensat ed.

1:53:48 PM

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch descri bed a possi ble scenario as to
how this bill would work. M. Berg explained that currently
a person could go on and watch for free, but if they want to
participate, they nust have a l|icense. Representati ve

Weyhrauch called it “dude” fishing. He asked if there are
any survival training requirenents. M. Berg replied that
the permt holder 1is responsible for that training.
Representative Wyhrauch asked if the person would be
subject to renuneration from the fishernen’s fund if they
were injured. M. Berg replied that they woul d.

1: 57: 00 PM

PAUL  SHADURA, PRESI DENT, KENAI PENI NSULA  FI SHERVAN' S
ASSCCI ATION, testified (via teleconference) in support of
the bill, but not the anmendnment that would restrict
conpensation for commercial fishing. He noted that many
boats rely on the casual |aborer. He suggested striking the

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



| anguage on page 2, lines 17-19. He noted his
responsibilities to have insurance and training provided for
hi s crewrenbers. He called this bill a necessity for his
i ndustry.

2:01: 07 PM

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch asked about ot her conpensation such
as a portion of the catch. M. Berg replied that the
current | anguage woul d prohibit all types of conpensation.

2:01:41 PM

Representative Holm inquired about the reason behind not
conpensating these crewnmenbers. M. Berg replied that was a
change to the Dbill in the Resources Conmttee by
Represent ati ve Seaton. He read fromthat earlier anendnent
and stated di sagreenent with it.

Representative Holm asked for an explanation of the other
side of the issue. M. Berg opined that crewrenbers should
be paid for their work, whether they are tourists or not.

2:04.:06 PM

MARK VI NSEL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, UNI TED FI SHERVEN OF ALASKA,
stated support for the bill as it was originally drafted.
The intent was to fill in gaps in comercial fishing crews.

He spoke in favor of paying tenporary crewnenbers.

2:07: 35 PM

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to ADOPT Anendment 1 A:
Page 2, Lines 17-19

Delete: “may not be paid, receive crew shares, or
receive other conpensation for work performed under the
|l i cense and”

Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED for discussion purposes. Co- Chair
Chenaul t explained that the anendnent would allow a captain
to bring short-termcrew on board and be conpensat ed.

Representative Wyhrauch asked how the current crewrenber
| icense and the proposed crewrenber |icense conpare, and how
much noney is saved. M. Berg related that the cost used to
be $60 for a resident and $180 for a non-resident. Now it
woul d be $30 for both. Representative Weyhrauch inquired if
they could get a regular Fish and Gane commercial fishing
crewrenber license. M. Berg said they could.

2:10: 50 PM

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



Co-Chair Chenault clarified that a crewnenber l|icense is
different than a sport fishing |license.

Co- Chair Meyer W THDREW his OBJECTION to adopt Anendnent 1
A.  There being NO OBJECTI ON, Anendnent 1 A was adopt ed.

2:11: 23 PM

Representati ve Wyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 1, which
would require the owner/operator of the boat to sign a
statenment of participation in randomdrug testing, to hold a
federal nmerchant marine |icense, and that the vessel is in
conpliance wth requirenents for safety equi pnent and ot her
passenger-for-hire rules.

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED for discussion purposes.

Representati ve Weyhrauch expl ai ned his reasoning behind the
anmendnent .

M. Berg stated opposition to Amendnent 1. He referred to
an email from the Coast Guard (copy on file), which states
that the crew is subject to drug testing. He stressed that
it I's unnecessary to spell it out in statute. He called it
alittle extra hassle.

2:14:44 PM

Co- Chair Chenault asked Representative Wyhrauch if charter
operators are currently required to have a form aski ng about
| icense fees and drug use. Representative Weyhrauch replied
that they are not. Co-Chair Chenault noted that a six-pack
operator is. Representative Wyhrauch explained that it
woul d cause a conpetitive disadvantage. It would open up a
whol e new area. Co-Chair Chenault replied when he had to
buy a crew license it was not required.

2:17: 28 PM

M. Berg noted that any comrercial operator who is going to
take people out for noney has to follow the sane
requi renents that the charter operator has to foll ow

2:18: 27 PM

Representative Hawker opined that this legislation is not
creating a new conpetitor for the charter industry because
the existing language in the bill, as anended, prohibits rod
and reel fishing while on a comrercial fishing vessel. M.
Berg said that’s the way he sees it.

2:20: 36 PM

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



Representati ve Hol m asked what a six-pack license is. M.
Berg explained that it is an operator’s |license required by
t he Coast Guard.

Representative Wyhrauch explained the differences in
requi renents of charter boats and conmercial boats. Thi s
bill addresses the commercial boat experience. M. Berg
noted that Coast QGuard requirenents are the sane for both
boat s.

2:23:31 PM

Representative Wyhrauch W THDREW Amendnent 1 and stated
that he would not offer Amendnment 2.

Representative Mdses MOVED to report CSHB 26 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee wth i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 26 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do pass”
recoomendation and wth fiscal inpact note #1 by the
Departnent of Fish and Gane, and wth an indeterm nate
fiscal inpact note #2 by the Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent.

2:25: 39 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO. 167

"An Act relating to providing a death certificate for a
deceased veteran w thout cost."

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HOLM sponsor, explained that HB 167
provides a death certificate, without cost, to a surviving
spouse or relative of a deceased veteran. It also provides
for a program honoring deceased veterans.

2:26:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG explained that the bill was
introduced by the House Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs
Commttee and nelds two bills together. He related that
Section 1 is nodeled on an Arizona statute and makes things
easier for the deceased’'s famly. The second part is
nodel ed on federal |aw It permts the Departnent of

Mlitary and Veteran's Affairs to honor the nmenory of a
deceased veteran who was a state resident by sending a
certificate bearing the governor’s signature to the next of
Kin.

2:29:19 PM

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer asked about the requirenment for 5 copies.
Representative Guenberg related a personal story about
receiving a free death certificate.

2:29: 57 PM

Representative Joule spoke about menbers  of Nati ve
Corporations and their need for nore than one original copy
of a death certificate. Representati ve G uenberg suggested
that the nunber could be Iimted.

2:31: 28 PM

Representative Lynn noted that it is not intended to enhance
a geneal ogi cal quest.

2:31: 50 PM

PH LLIP M TCHELL, BUREAU OF VITAL STATISTICS, DIVISION OF
PUBLI C HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES,
reported on the fiscal note and the average nunber of
certificates requested. He noted that it mght take tine
for people to becone acquainted with this program He
related that there has been a 5 percent increase in the
nunber of deat hs.

2:34: 01 PM

Representative Holm asked if there have been any requests
for this to be a free service. M. Mtchell said no.

2:34: 38 PM

Representative Hawker referred to a statenment about no
general funding being budgeted. He clarified that the FY06
has $84, 000 budgeted. He pointed out that there would be a
decrease of $50,000 in receipt services. He suggested that
a zero or indetermnate note would be better. M. Mtchell
agreed that there could be a change to reflect that.
Represent ati ve Hawker expl ai ned the budget process. He said
it is a grey area. He suggested a zero note.

2:37: 54 PM

Representative Kelly opined that the note could be a zero
note. He debated the issue.

2:39: 04 PM

Representative Hawker put it in the context of the bureau s
budget and the effect on the governor’s $2 mllion budget.

Representative Weyhrauch stated his appreciation as to how
the bureau is being nanaged. He asked for an interpretation

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



of “one death certificate”. M. Mtchell explained that his
understanding that one is provided per every request.

2:40: 46 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked if they would be certified copies.
M. Mtchell said yes. Co-Chair Chenault related a personal
story. Representative Weyhrauch asked if the first one is
free and the rest are not. M. Mtchell said that would be
correct if one individual is making the request.

2:41: 53 PM

JERRY BEALE, DI VI SI ON SERVI CE MANAGER, M LI TARY AND VETERANS
AFFAI RS, testified (via teleconference) in favor of HB 167.
He spoke of the Veterans Adm nistration’s requirenents.

2:43: 13 PM

Representative Hawker asked the committee to approve two
zero fiscal notes to HB 167. He MOVED to ADOPT a House
Finance Commttee zero note to the Departnent of Health and
Soci al Servi ces. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so
or der ed.

2:43: 35 PM

Representative Foster MOVED to report CSHB 167 (STA) out of
Comm ttee wth i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 167 (STA) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with a zero fiscal inpact note #1
by the Departnent of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs, and with
a new zero fiscal inpact note by the House Finance Conm ttee
for the Departnment of Health and Social Services.

2:45:55 PM

HOUSE BILL NO. 213

"An Act relating to al cohol server education.”

JANE PERRSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JAY RAMRAS, expl ai ned
that HB 213 would nmake it easier for conpetent alcohol
servers to renew their al cohol server education card w thout
retaking the full course, provided they pass the test. I t
woul d save tine and expense in the service industry.

Co-Chair Chenault asked if this is referring to the TAMS
card. Ms. Perrson replied yes.

2:47: 40 PM

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



Representative Hawker inquired if the individual would need
to be retested. M. Perrson replied yes.

Representative Kelly noted that commuter airlines require a
test. He asked if this test is simlar.

2:48: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS, related that he enployees
personnel servers who have to take the 3-hour course and
then take the exam He said that there are thousands of
hours lost by having to take the course over again. The
bill would elimnate nost of the course and the servers
could take the test and be awarded a new certification.

2:52: 09 PM

Representative Kelly asked if the test contains the sane
material as the course. M. Perrson replied yes.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if the ABC board is ok with this.
Representative Ranras said he believes that Labor and
Comrerce supports this bill

2:53: 26 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked if the test is the sane every tine.
M. Ranras conpared it to a CPR course; always the sane.
Co- Chair Chenault stated that if new information is included
in the test, he supports the bill

2:54:48 PM

Representative Wyhrauch asked if there are accommbdati ons
for blind bartenders. Representative Ranras said an
anendnent could be entertained for alternate nethods of
testing. Representative Wyhrauch inquired if proof of

conpl etion coul d be a card or somnet hi ng el se.
Representative Ranras explained that presently everyone is
i ssued a card. Troopers can request that the cards be
shown, so cards are used to keep it sinple.

2:57:55 PM

Representative Foster MOWED to report HB 213 out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

HB 213 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recommendation and wth a zero fiscal inpact note by the
Departnent of Public Safety.

ADJ QURNVENT

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



The neeting was adjourned at 2:59 PM

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 25/05 1:49 P. M



